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Connecting you with Texas.

Agenda
Brooks Act and Professional Services Procurement Act 

Procurement Resources

Qualifications-Based Proposals

Request for Proposal

Evaluation Criteria

Questions and Discussion
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Connecting you with Texas.

Laws
U.S. Code (USC)
o Title 23 Highways
o Title 49 

Transportation

Texas Statues
o Government 

Code
o Transportation 

Code

o USDOT, EPA
o Code of Federal 

Regulations 
(CFR)

Regulations o TxDOT
o Texas 

Administrative 
Code (TAC)

FEDERAL STATE

Laws and Regulations
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Connecting you with Texas.

Brooks Act

• Title 40 – Public Buildings, Property, 
and Works
• Subtitle 1 – Federal Property and 

Administrative Services
• Chapter 11 – Selection of 

Architects and Engineers
• §1101. Policy
• §1102. Definitions
• §1103. Selection procedure
• §1104. Negotiation of contract

United 
State Code 

(USC)
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Connecting you with Texas.

Professional Services Procurement Act
• Title 10. General Government

• Subtitle F. State and Local Contract 
and Fund Management
• Chapter 2254. Professional and 

Consulting Services 
• Subchapter A. Professional 

Services
• Sec. 2254.001. Short Title. This 

subchapter may be cited as the 
Professional Services 
Procurement Act.

Texas 
Government 

Code
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Connecting you with Texas.

Professional Engineering Procurement Services

PEPS manuals, Contract Services manuals, 
Administrative or Division-level directives

Guidance documents 

23 CFR §172 (federal regulations)
43 TAC Chapter 9 (state regulations) 

40 USC 1101-1104 – The Brooks Act
Tx Gov Code Chapter 2254 – Professional Services Procurement Act
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Connecting you with Texas.

Competence and Qualification
Select the most highly qualified provider of those services on 

the basis of demonstrated competence and 
qualifications

• Request for Proposal (RFP)
o Evaluation Criteria
 Technical Approach
 Project Manager’s Relevant Experience
 Project Planning and Management
 Key Staff’s Relevant Experience
 Past Performance Score
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Connecting you with Texas.

Procurement Resources

•Service Center 
Manager (SCM)

•or District / 
Division (DD)

Meeting with 
TxDOT 

•Pre-Wave
•Pre-RFP

Group 
Informational 

Meetings

•Questionnaire
•Project Team 
Composition (PTC) 
Form

•Scope of Services 
to be Provided 

•Non-Listed 
Categories

Request for 
Proposal (RFP)

•Question period
•Debriefs
•Group
•Individual

Question and 
Response
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Connecting you with Texas.

Meeting with TxDOT
Service Center Manager (SCM) or District / Division 
(DD)
•Knowledge of the service area.
•Knowledge on historical use.
•Knowledge of the process.
•Consistent message.

Do not contact the Consultant Selection Team 
(CST)
•Request for Proposal states, “Note: Do not 
contact these individuals about this 
procurement. Since the procurement process 
has started, these TxDOT employees will not 
respond to questions about this procurement.”
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Connecting you with Texas.

Pre-Wave or Pre-RFP Meeting
Description of 

project(s) being 
procured 

Description of 
the project 

limits

Overview of 
procurement 
and selection 

process

Anticipated 
precertification 
work categories 

Anticipated 
non-listed work 

categories 
(NLC)

Preliminary 
preclusions or 

core team 
restrictions

Information- 
HUB or DBE 
requirements

Potential 
timeline for the 
advertisement 

Overview of 
contract scope 

Unique 
characteristics 

or factors of the 
project

- HUB – 
Historically 

Underutilized 
Business

- DBE - 
Disadvantaged 

Business 
Enterprise
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Connecting you with Texas.

RFP Resource Files
Questionnaire

•License or Registration Requirements
•Deputy Project Manager

Project Team Composition (PTC) Form
•Percentage of each category of work
•HUB or DBE Goal

Scope of Services to be Provided 
•By the State
•By the Engineer

Non-Listed Categories
•Non-typical needs
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Connecting you with Texas.

Request for Proposal
Deputy Project 

Manager

Percentage of 
each category 

of work

Percentage and 
Descriptions of 

Non-Listed 
Categories

License or 
Registration 

Requirements

HUB or DBE 
Goal

Evaluations 
Process

Proposal 
Evaluation 

Criteria

Proposal 
Content

Proposal 
Format
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Connecting you with Texas.

Do I need to have an 
introduction graphic page as a 

part of the proposal?

Do I need to show this in 
resume format?
•Address
•Phone number
•Email address
•LinkedIn profile link
•Firm links
•Video links

Proposal Format
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Connecting you with Texas.

Proposal

The answer is, no.

Consultant 
Selection Team 
members cannot 
use resources 
outside of the 
proposal.
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Connecting you with Texas.

Proposal Evaluation Criteria



18

Connecting you with Texas.

Evaluation Score Average (ESA)

ESA Score Past Performance 
Score

80 < ESA 5

60 < ESA < 80 4

40 < ESA < 60 3

20 < ESA < 40 2
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Connecting you with Texas.

Evaluation Score Average (ESA) example
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Connecting you with Texas.

Past Performance Score
Collected by the 

Procurement Engineer 
from PS-CAMS or the 
RFP average is used 
to determine your 

score. 

You don’t need to put 
in a previous contact’s 

information as a 
reference.

You don’t need to put 
in information about 

your Past Performance 
Score in your 

proposal.

Consultant Selection 
Team members 

cannot use resources 
outside of the 

proposal.
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Connecting you with Texas.

Proposal Content Paragraph

How can I show my competence in what is covered in the content paragraph?

How do my qualifications relate to the content paragraph?

What are the highlighted project attributes?

What is unique?



22

Connecting you with Texas.

Technical Approach

Project 
understanding 

Project 
approach 

Innovative 
concepts or 

Innovative 
alternatives
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Connecting you with Texas.

Innovation

Example: “We have repeatedly used the 
innovative ____ tool for completing projects. It 
has proved to be an invaluable tool since 2001.”

•How do you use it in your approach?
•How does it help you in your approach?
•What is the benefit?
• Is it innovative?
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Connecting you with Texas.

Relevant Experience

Project 
Manager’s 

Relevant 
Experience

• Experience with similar or related 
projects 

• Include technical experience  
• Include management experience

Key Staff’s 
Relevant 

Experience
• Experience with similar projects
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Connecting you with Texas.

Project Example
State Highway (SH) 183 

Control Section Job (CSJ) XXXX-XX-XXX 

Contract Number ##-#SDP####

1 mile stretch

Within tight right-of-way

Two railroads

With a nearby cemetery
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Connecting you with Texas.

Project Planning and Management
Project staffing and resource management 

• Who, How, and Why 

Communication plan 

Quality control procedures 

Includes prime firm’s past experience with utilizing subproviders and meeting program 
goals (HUB/DBE) and/or how it plans to utilize subproviders to meet goals on the contract 

Also, may include project scheduling or phasing for SD projects
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Connecting you with Texas.

Qualification versus Savings
Example 1: “I stay within the budget and time.”

Example 2: “We stay under the budget and time.”

Example 3: “These are the techniques we use to stay under budget 
and time…”

Expansion on techniques can show your knowledge and application, 
supporting your qualifications and competence in your approach.

This is not low bid. We are seeking the highest qualified.
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Connecting you with Texas.

Questions to Ask
How does this display my qualifications?

How does this demonstrate my competence?

How does this meet the criteria?

How does this relate to the content paragraph?

How does this relate to the scope of work?
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Connecting you with Texas.

Best Practices

Have a fresh set 
of eyes review 
your proposal; 

keeping the 
criteria in mind.

Have someone 
in your 

company score 
your proposal.

Score your 
proposal.
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Connecting you with Texas.

Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS): Features
Expertise 

and 
Experience

Focus on the 
professional 
background

Technical 
Skills and 

Capabilities

Detailed 
assessment of 

technical 
proficiency

Application 
in Specific 
Services

Commonly used 
for architectural, 
engineering, and 

surveying 
services
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Connecting you with Texas.

Qualifications-Based Selection (QBS): Highlights

Opportunity for 
high-quality 
outcomes

Encourages 
innovation and 
creativity

Potential for 
quality service
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Connecting you with Texas.

Resources

40 USC CH. 11: 
SELECTION OF 

ARCHITECTS AND 
ENGINEERS

GOVERNMENT 
CODE CHAPTER 

2254. 
PROFESSIONAL 

AND CONSULTING 
SERVICES

Texas 
Administrative Code

ECFR :: 23 CFR 
PART 172 --

PROCUREMENT, 
MANAGEMENT, AND 
ADMINISTRATION 
OF ENGINEERING 

AND DESIGN 
RELATED SERVICES

U.S.C. TITLE 49 - 
TRANSPORTATION

https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title40/subtitle1/chapter11&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title40/subtitle1/chapter11&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title40/subtitle1/chapter11&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title40/subtitle1/chapter11&edition=prelim
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.2254.htm
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.2254.htm
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.2254.htm
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.2254.htm
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.2254.htm
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/GV/htm/GV.2254.htm
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=43&pt=1&ch=9&sch=C&rl=Y
https://texreg.sos.state.tx.us/public/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=43&pt=1&ch=9&sch=C&rl=Y
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-172
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-172
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-172
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-172
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-172
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-172
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-172
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-B/part-172
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2011-title49/html/USCODE-2011-title49-subtitleIII-chap53-sec5325.htm
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2011-title49/html/USCODE-2011-title49-subtitleIII-chap53-sec5325.htm


Questions and Discussion



Mindy Namiko Sawyer, P.E.
Transportation Engineer

Mindy.Sawyer@txdot.gov

(512) 803-5750
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